
THE THOMAS ROSE HOUSE 
c. 1735 

59 Church Street 
No. 10 

Tne front door of this hous e was originally at the 
north end of the east facade giving access to an entrance 
hall with the stair hall behind; as in the Eveleigh House. 
In recent times this street entrance has been converted 
into a window and a new entrance devised from the piazza 
on the south into a spacious reception room. The drawing 
room on the second floor extends the width of the house 
and like the other principal rooms is completely · paneled. 
The paneling in the stairway is of walnut but for many 
years has been painted over. The interior woodwork in 
this house is of a simple robust sort with no ornamental 
wood carving of leaf forms. However, some house holder, 
early in the nineteenth century, longinq for a bit of 
fashionable Adam exhuberance, placed a small mantel of 
that period in the drawing room where it holds its place 
without embarrassment. 

In 1929 the iig-saw decorated piazzas were replaced, 
not in conformity with the period of the house, wnich had 
been built without such an appendage, but in the manner 
of the early nineteenth century when piazzas began to 
proliferate in this neighborhood. 

The window frames are set almost flush with the face 
of the stucco. The stucco cornice under the eaves con­
sists of a crown mould, a fascia and then a deep cove 
terminatinq at the wall with a small astragal and cove 
moulding. The gateway. the street wall and the garden 
are later developments of a harmonious ensemble . 

A. S. 



THE THOMAS ROSE HOUSE 
Constructed c. 1735; some alterations c. 1790; restored 1929 
59 Church Street 

Built about 1735, the floorplan of the Rose House reflects the asymmetrical plan used for larger 
dwellings in Charleston in the second quarter of the eighteenth century, although turned on its 
side. The principal door originally opened from the street into the larger of two front rooms. The 
smaller room was unheated. Beyond an arched opening was another heated room and a staircase. 
Bernard Herman points to the plan of the Rose House as indicative of the "merchant house" plan in 
American and English port cities. The front room and four others in the house are fully panelled 
in cypress, while the stair balusters, brackets, and rail are of walnut, the preferred material for 
better Charleston joinery prior to 1740. Of particular interest are the "bowfats" or cupboards with 
arched openings in both the front downstairs and upstairs rooms. The cupboards in the back 
dining room were installed in 1929. 

On December 8, 1734, Thomas Rose wrote from Charleston to his brother, Richard Rose, at 
Abingdon in Berkshire, requesting that he "In quier after four workmen that cant live in London 
on .. , Brick laid" and to send over four such men willing to "sell them selves" for four years. This 
ma}' link the construction date long accepted for the house which Rose built on Lot sixty-one of the 
Grand Modell, recently devised to his wife Beuler by the will of her father, Thomas Elliott. Rose's 
father, owner of the property across the street, was an Ashley River planter who had supervised the 
construction of St. Andrew's Parish Church on the Ashley. 

Soon after construction the property was sold to Benjamin Savage in whose family it remained until 
1833. Savage died in 1750, as did his nephew and heir. His widow, Martha, retained a life 
interest in the house and died in 1760 leaving an extensive inventory of furnishings including five 
paintings in gilt frames, apparently hanging in the upstairs drawing room. Extensive lists of 
kitchen furnishings and garden equipment present an excellent view of the outbuildings. The 
inventory also lists the names and health condition of twelve slaves living on the property, each of 
whose status is carefully delineated in Martha Savage's will: most were given to relatives or 
directed to be sold, the elderly to receive small bequests anci he maintained by a family member. 

The second floor drawing room (probably the "dining parlor") extends across the entire second 
floor front, the earliest surviving example of this plan in the cil:y. Marks on the panelling indicate 
the subdivision of the room in the nineteenth century, but it was restored along with the rest of the 
house in 1929 by Mr. and Mrs. Frank Whitman, northerners wintering in Charleston, with the 
guidance of local architect, Albert Simons. At this time, the mid-nineteenth-century door which 
opened from the street into the smaller unheated front room was converted into a window. As 
with so many houses in the city, the piazzas were added in the nineteenth cen tury and by the 1920s 
appear in photographs with turned Victorian columns. The present piazza is a reproduction of a late 
eighteenth century type with the addition of a Georgian Revival door screen. 

In 1942, the Whitmans sold the house to Henry P. Staats, a Connecticut architectural historian, and 
his wife. The Staats were among the founders of Historic Ch:~' 1 r: ~: r,on Foundation and restored a 
number of buildings on Church Street. The property today is ~' i' occupied by Staats descendants but 
owned by the Church Street Historic Foundation which the S ::i;, ts established. 

The original kitchen and laundry outbuilding survives, incorpo1·:1t.ed into the present house via an 
addition with an arched opening in the Charleston manner or : he early twentieth century. The 
present garden was first laid out by Loutrel Briggs in the 19 '1!::; : : 11 d augmented later. 

Sources: 
Belfast Public Reference Office (Reference proyided by Dr. D:wid Shields, the Citadel.) 
Benjamin Savage, Inventory, Charleston County. 
Church Street Historic Foundation, "Data Concerning the h ouse ;11 59 Church Street." 
Martha Savage, Inventory, Charleston County, 85 (1758-1761 ) . 
Martha Savage, Will, Charleston County Wills 9 (1760-1767). 



THE THOMAS ROSE HOUSE 

Constructed c. 1735; some alterations c. 1790; restored 1929 

59 Church Street 

On December 8, 1734, Thomas Rose wrote. from Charleston to his brother, Richard Rose, at 

Abingdon in Berkshire, requesting that he "In quier after four workmen that cant live in London 

on ... Brick laid" and to send over four such men willing to "sell them selves" for four years. This 

may link the construction date long accepted for the house which Rose built on Lot sixty-one of the 

Grand Modell, recently devised to his wife Beuter by the will of her father, Thomas Elliott. Rose's 

father, owner of the property across the street, was an Ashley River planter who had supervised the 

construction of St. Andrew's Parish Church on tl1e Ashley. 

Soon after construction the property was sold to Benjamin Savage in whose family it remained until 

1833. Savage died in 1750, as did his nephew and heir. His widow, Martha, retained a life 

interest in the house and died in 1760 leaving an extensive inventory of furnishings including five 

paintings in gilt frames, apparently hanging in the upstairs drawing room. Extensive lists of 

kitchen furnishings and garden equipment present an excellent view of the outbuildings. The 

inventory also lists the names and health condition of twelve slaves living on the property, each of 

whose status is carefully delineated in Martha Savage's will: most were given to relatives or 

directed to be sold, the elderly to receive small bequests and be maintained by a family member. 

The floorplan of the Rose House reflects the asymetrical plan used for larger dwellings in 

Charleston in the second quarter of the eighteenth century, although turned on its side. The door 

originally opened from the street to the larger of two front rooms, even though photographs show 

that a front door on the end served the smaller room in the nineteenth century as well. The 

chambered rear staircase lies to the north. Bernard Herman points to the plan of the Rose House as 

indicative of the "merchant house" plan in American and English port cities. The front room and 

four others in the house are fully panelled in cypress, while the stair balusters, brackets, and rail 

are of walnut, the preferred material for better Charleston joinery prior to 1740. Of particular 

interest are the "bowfats'' or cupboards with arched openings in both the front room downstairs and 

upst<lirs. 

The second floor drawing room (probably the "dining parlor") extends across the entire second 

floor front, the earliest surviving example of this plan in t11e city. Marks on the panelling indicate 

the subdivision of the room in the nineteenth century, but it was restored along with the rest of the 



house in 1929 by Mr. and Mrs. Frank Whitman, northerners wintering in Charleston, with the 

guidance of local architect, Albert Simons. The piazzas were added in the nineteenth century and 

by the 1920s appear in photographs with turned Victorian columns. The present piazza is a 

reproduction of a late eighteenth century type with the addition of a Georgian Revival door screen. 

In 1942, the Whitmans sold tJ1e house to Henry P. Staats, a Connecticut architectural historian, and 

his wife. The Staats were among the founders of Historic Charleston Foundation and restored a 

number of buildings on Church Street. The property today is still occupied by Staats descendants but 

owned by the Church Street Historic Foundation which tJ1e Staats established. 

The original kitchen and laundry outbuilding survives, incorporated into the present house via a 

"hyphen" addition with an arched opening in the Charleston manner of the early twentieth 

century. The present garden was first laid out by Loutrel Briggs in the 1940s and augmented later. 

JHP 



Of Early Charleston Houses. 

Thomas Rose House One 
By ROBERT P •. STOCKTON 

(EDITOR'S NOTE: This is 
another in a series of stories 
about atarleston structures in 

·.~ the new "Historic Architecture 
lnv~ntory. ") 

The Thomas Rose House at 59 . 
Church St. is one of the most 
uns.poiled of early Charleston 
hous·es. 

It 1s of the compact, squarish 
Ftnd,.:father north European type 

~ of "'construction which charac­
'."" tt!rized. Charleston houses before 
; 1760. 
: :~ Built of brick with walls 
; \ ~pproximately three feet thick 
; ·and stu~coed, it is constructed· 
; close. to the ground over a four 
'• a:nd one.half foot deep base­
' ~ .roerff,. having been been built on 
~ ·~high ground." 

The house is today entered 
:. through that quirk of Charleston 
· architecture, a piazza with a 
i'" -' !false" fro~t door on the street. 
· Though in the traditional style 

of.. Charleston .piazzas .and built 

with· Adam-influenced grace, 
the piazzas and their door were 
actually added about 1929, when 
the house was restored. 

When built, the street facade 
of the house was as asymetrical 
as its floor plan. 

The central Window, lighting 
the present reception room on 
the ground. floor, is wider than 
the others and possibly was 
originally a door. 

Do You Kn3'v 

YC!Ur Otarlaton? 

Howevez:, when the floor plan· 
is compared with similar plans 
of other early houses, the more 
probable possibility arises that 
the front door originally opened 
into the smaller room on the 
northeast corner of the house. 

But that does not explain why 
the one window on the ground · 
floor and the central window of. 

Session Shows 
Signs Of Life 
COLU~BIA (AP)- Traditionally, the 

South Carolina General Assembly has 
staited out at a slow walk, got· into a 
fi-Qlaboaj; th,e middle of Apr il, then into 
'a '. gallop in late May, and finished its 
~jlnual session sometime in early sum­
tmer~ 
-:. ·,t hings ·have changed in 1975. 
. : The Senate, going full blast during the 
ope~ng weeks, has_ passed two ethics 
bills, a measure to UI_> state aid to pub­
lic schools; reported out of committee 

.a coup.le .of bills affecting the Dairy 
Comm1ss1on ; passed a new drunken 
driving bHI; passed a rule ·change 
calling for public hearings .before . the 
General Assembly elects any judges or 
members Qf the Public Service Com­

: mission; and gave the nod to ~everal 

constitutional amendments approved by 
the voters in the November election. 

The House, stalled. during the first 
week by debate over rule changes, has 
finally moved into· high gear, getting 
through an ethics bill and several other · 
.major matters. 

In years past, such progress would 
have been noted sometime in the spring 
and long, long after the ground hog had 
looked for his shadow. • 

In years past, the first few weeks 
were highlighted by meetings tha t. 
lasted no longer than 30 minutes a day. 

This time around, both chambers, 
especially the Senate, have gone on for 
three , four, sometimes five hours a 
day. · 

the drawing room on the sec.ond 
floor are wider than the others. 

Possibly, in a break from the 
rule, both were originally door­
ways, the upper one opening 
onto a balcony. 

The floor plan features . the 
one large and one small rooms 
on the street front. Behind them 
a re t.he dining room on the 
southwest corner and the stair 
hall and pantry on the northwest 
corner. 

The drawing room encom· 
passes the entire front of the 
second floor. This room and the 
other principal rooms and stair 
hall are paneled in cypress, 
while the stair rail, balusters 
a·nd wall rail are of ·walnut, 
probably brought from England. 

The paneling and mouldings 
are· simple and sturdy, in the 
early fashion, and the larger 
ground floor -room retains the 
_original fireplace with plain 
bolection moulding . and shelf. 

Arched openings of china 
cabinets in the principal rooms 
and an arched doorway to the 
drawing room lend variety to 
the interior. 

The Adam-style mantel of 
the draw"in·g room .and the 
Federal-style, identical man­
tels of the dining room and the 
master bedroom were added 
about 1800, replacing .original 
mantels which had larger open­
ings and blue and white. Dutch 
tiles. · 

A curious bow evident in the 
drawing room floor is caused by 
the house . timbers which were 
framed the length of"the house, 
rather than the width of the 
house. These supporting beams 
a.re of heart yellow pine and 
nearly petrified with age. 

The interior paneling is laid 
directly .on the brick. Unpaneled 
walls are of oys_ter-shell plas­
ter, laid on willow twig lathing. 

. The house has been named for 
Thomas Rose, an Ashley River 

planter, who . 
it soon afte1 
Beuler Elliot 

If this is 
replaced a 1 
which Capt. 
Ii ves," whic 
Beuler Ellio! 
will in 1731. . 

A structur 
present one, i 
in the •· 
Charles-Town 
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narrowly mi: 
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planter, who is said to have built 
it soon after his marriage to 
Beuler Elliott in 1733. 

If this is true, the house 
replaced a previous house "in 
which Capt. John Hext now 
lives,'' which was devised to 
Beuler Elliott by he.r father's 
will in 1731. , 
~ structure, presumably the 

present one, is shown on the site 
in the " Ichnography of 
Charles-Town at High Water," 
a map drawn in 1739. · 

This building would have 
narrowly missed destruction in 
the great fire of 1740 · which 

:wig lathing. (Staff Plloto by Birrbac• ) 

consumed everything on the 
opposite side of the street. • 

The house stands on part of 
L.ot No. 61 of the Grand Modell 
of Charlestown, original plan of 
the city. Its site was just within 
the town walls. 

Lot No. 61 was originally 
·granted to Elizabeth Willis on 
March 15, 1680, and later ac­
quired by Thomas Elliott, father 
of Beuler. · 

Rose sold the property in 1741 
to Benjamin Savage, in whose 
family it remained until 1833, 
when it was bought by the.First 
Baptist Church. 

The church sold it in 1847 to 
Jonathan Lucas, grandson of the 
Jonathan Lucas who built the 
first stearri-powered rice mill 
in South Carolina. 

The house was bought and 
restored "in 1929 by Mr. and Mrs. 
Frank E. Whitman, who sold it 
in 1942 to architect Henry P. 
Staats. It is now the home of 
Mrs. Staats. 

The house is said to be visited 
by the ghost of. Dr. Joseph Ladd 
Brown, a . young physician whq 
died there following a pistol duel 
over an actress -nicknamed 
"Perdita." 

........ ........... ... .. ,- ·-- ······-·1 
~ 
1 
; 
; 

n named for. 
. shley River Thomas Rose House In Early Style . 



59 Church Str~et 

Center Of Romantic Duel 
53rd In A Series 

By . JACK LELAND 
Evening Post Staff Writer 

~ts . safe pa~sage through . the 
Revolution; When built, the 

. house had a central door from 
the street directly )nto the 
very large downstairs parlor. 

· Rue should grow in the old In its early days this room 
fashioned garden of the house probably was a business of· 
at 59 Church Street where fice of sorts. Today five 
a 22-year-old man died for . · windows penetrate the wide 
love ne·arly 200 years ago. · facade, giving light to · the 

He was Dr. Joseph . Ladd room and balance to the 
building. ' ·' . 

.r Brown, late of Rhode ·Island. 
medical doctor by vocation, The upstairs drawing room 
poet by avocation and loser . also had .. a. cen.tral door. It 
in a duel over an actress. opened orito a balcony over 

_His ghost is. still said to · the· sidewalk. The house ·was 
haunt the lovely old house that . built duririg the .second decade 
was built by Thomas Rose of Royal rule...:of CatQli?la, an 
about 1732. It is a charming era that brought ~reat pros­
l>uilding in. the early georgian perity to the Colomals, some­
manner and· much more com- thing they had not· experi­
modious than ·its street ~acade enced under the quarrelsome . 
would indicate.· rule of the .Lords Proprietors. 

Thomas · Rose apparently · Church· Str~t was well 
built the house shortly after within the w.alls of old Charles 
he married.Beuler Elliott who Town ·and its. fairly high eleva­
inheriteci the land fronr· her tion above tidewater gave it 
father~ The .ElliottS were a some protection against hur­
very well-to-do and· also a very ricanes. · One memorable 
pious. family, goin~ snmewh<it storm sent a schooner of 9-fOQt 
against the gram of the draft up ·church Street ·very 
Cavalier types that constituted· near to the front door oL No. 
the majority of Oharleston's 59. The : stoutly .built house 
citizenry in the early l~h cerr. stood agairist tha~ onslaught 
t of· hature as in futtire years 
ury. it was to withstand the ear-
One of her. brothers, for in-. quake. of 18.8.6 a. nd the always 

stance, donated the land im- · f 
mediately to the . nor.th· to a present destructive hand o 
group of Maine Baptists ~who manA · .1:· di ed · th 
fled that rock bound coast 81 ver. sc; · ~g ~n e 
and its pur1_·tam.·cal religious newell post of the stairway, 

indicates . that the architect 
leaders because of a was satisfied wiih his work 
theological difference of opi- and w_ itb""_hi_.s payrii"ent fo_. r . it. 
nion concerning mfant bair Th h · · d fr - th tism: With their pastor they . · e ouse passe om e 
sought haven . in Charleston Savage · lainUy -in . . the 1tl30s 
and received it. So numerous and· subsequently had a 

'. did . they · become ·. in . the number. of : owners. . It was .· 
· southern stretch of Church resfe>red in .;1929 by the Frank 

f.reet that . .it obtained the E. Whitmans· wh!l added the 
pithl)t of -"Baptist Town! ' piazzas anq g~teway at that 
Mrs. Rose's 'relative5 subse- time. Its, present owners, Mr: 

t1 hel · bl. h and Mrs~ . Henry P. Staats, 
uen Y · ped esta . is a. bought it in 1941. Later they 
val Baptist Church a few 

, ors south on the opposite purchased · a ·house to the 
.e of . Church Street. The south, . razed . it and created 
·1ding - a wooden one ---: the : lovely · garden that so 
· d · until . well after 1900 delights visitors today. 
ri it was demolished. The The · house; · with , its 
e r Baptist ch u r c h, background of piety and· pros· 

ther church" of Southern perous tnmquility, became 
ists, is still standing. . the · center of one of 
- .Rose family , sold the . Charleston's more roµiantic 

to the Savage family duels. · · · 
1. This clan was. to oe- The year .was 'i78G . aqd 

; t for 95 years, to witness young Dr. Brown ·was prac-
i 
\ 

ticing ntedicine· in Charleston. 
and' writing poetry as. a hobby. 
Like most young bachelors of 
the · day, he _attended the 
theatei: .and had become fast 
friends with another young 
man, Ralph Isaacs. 
· Then a Miss Barrett came 

to toW!i,. acting' in the pro­
duction of - Shakespear~'s 
Richard II!. Brown lo.5t his 
heart . . 1$aacs thought the' ac­
tress· - nicknamed "Perdita" 
because · of a. fancied likeness 
to the :English actress of that 
name ..;... was onlv SO-:so. · 

They argued. ·The .. debate 
finallY. · reached the stage 
where ·they were writing. let­
ters · ·. to the -ne:w.spapers 
~riticizing each· . other's . opi· 
nions and . ultimately to a duel. 
· Dr. Brown apparently fired·· 
into the air but Isaacs, hoping 
to give ·-his .~pponerit a flesh 

wound, aimed·· for the legs. 
·His aim was not good and 
Dr. Brown re.ceived a serious · · 
wound. He was taken to 59 
Church where he died three 
weeks later. Perdita . and the 
theatrical cast had left · town 
and the young lover died 
without a parting farewell 
frmn the object of his af­
fections. · 

Perhaps he remembered the · 
words-fr.om Richard m; : 

"Was ever wom~n in 
this humor woo;d 

. Was ever woman in 
this" humor won?" 

-History does -not. say, 
however. · . 

The .old house stands today, 
the churchyard to the . north 
filled with long 4ead and pious 
Baptists, whUe in its upper 
roorns the ghost of a cava1ier 
poet is also silent. . ·, ~....:.\W.&..-

. .;,.:.;-·~! ~· ;_; ' ~ .. ;~ 

:·i,·t~:..· ~:~- ~:.;}:t 
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Town ·and its fairly high E_lleva­
tion above tidewater gave it 
some protection· against hur­
ricanes. One memorable 
storm sent a schooner of 9-foot 
draft up · Church Street ·--very 
near to the front door of. No. 
;g . . The . stootly, l>uilt house 
iood agairis~ that .onslaught 
f nature as . m filtlire years 

was to withstand the . ear-
1ake of 18&6 and the _always · 
·esent destructive hand of 

where ·they were. writµig let- . however. · . 
ters· · to the . ·new_spapers The old ho~ stands today, 
criticizing each . other's · opi· the churchyard to the . north 
nions and .. ultimately to a duel. ftlled with long qead and pious 
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DATA CONCERNING THE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

To one Elizabeth Willis there was granted one lot •• 61. • • shown on the 

Grand Model of the Town of Charlestown. 

Al so to one Joshua Wi l lis was granted lot #62 on the Grand Model of the 

Town. (Is Jo.shua husband of Elizabeth or brother?) 

The grants were made by the Lord propri etors on March 15, 1680 and i s 

one of the few such grants ever made out to a woman. Also 11 70 acres of land 

contiguous ·to the Blessing" was granted to El izabeth Willis on April 6, 

1681. The. la!Jd was situated on a bluff by French Quarter Creek off the 

Cooper River. 

SOURCE ••• Vol. 18 page 24 •.• Baronies of South Carolina .•. Quinby and East Branch 

of the Cooper River by H. A. M. SMITH. 

On Apri l 15, 1707 John Harleston, a recent immigrant to the Colony .._/ 

married Elizabeth Wi llis (daughter of grantee??) and by" her had 7 children .. • 

see Vol . 3 pages 154-156. 

SOURCES •. •• • INDEX of WILLS at the Charleston Free Library. 

Master Index to the Historical Magazine at the LIBRARY of the 

College of Charleston. 

Records of MESNE CONVEYENCE. 

RECORDS of the HISTORlCAL SOCIETY ••• see their Year Books. 



"Tv10 Centuries of the First Baptist Church of South Caro l ina, 1683 - 1883 11
• 

Edited by H. A. Tupper . R. H. Woodward & Co. , 1889. 

Page 82 

"In 1699 by the gift of one of the members. Wm. Eilliott . the Church obtained 

the lot in Church Street , No. 62 in the plan of the town, the same on which 

the First Baptist Church now stands. " 

Footnote, page 82. . . 
"the lot originally belonged to Joseph Willi s, mariner, and was bought from 

his only daughter and heiress, Elizabeth Willi s, for £20. The deed bears 

date July 18, 1699 ... The lot was 100 11 wide by 250 1 deep and was designed 

for a parsonage as well as a church. " 



Joseph Brown Ladd, b. 1764 in Rhode Is1and. Studied medicine and came 

to Charleston shortly after 1783. Boarded with a Mr. Roberts on Church 

Street. (Di rectory 1785 - Thomas Roberts. bookse 11 er, 84 Church St. ) Street 

numbers changed after 1819. Killed in a duel in late October 1786 - patella 

was smashed and gangrene set in. Died Nov. l 0, 1786. By Ralph Isaacs. 

At Harmony Ha 11, a theatre, Ladd, Isaacs and others in a box, after 

having had a few in a tavern nearby. Issacs made 1 oud and uncomplimentary 

remarks about Perdita Robinson or Robertson, Ladd took exception and called 

him to task, finally hit him in face with cane. Died on Church St. Buried in 

St. Michael 1 s Cemetery - no stone. 

News &Courier . March 23, 1942 and June 7, 1942. 

HCF notes on 59 Church Street 

Benj. & Jeremiah Savage both died in 1750 and property passed to Thomas 

Savage, thro will of Benjamin, brother of Jeremiah. Feb. 14, 1849 - Record 

of deed for year 1849 - page 31, 205, 211 . Lucas to Dewar. 

It is assumed that present house at 59 Church St. was built by Thomas • 

Bouler Rose. People of cul tivated backgrounds and wealth. House of descript­

ion of present one is shown on a pl at of the town as being one of the 

surviving buildings after fire of 1740. Architectural and structural details 

point to having been built between 1735 and 1740. 

Look up G-7, page 383 (Baptists and petition.) 

Who was Thomas Rice (Adelle Pours . ) 



Notes on Thomas Savage: 

Chas . Free Library, Mi sc. Records, Vol. 86-A, page 508 

Thomas Middleton was commissioned colonel of a Regiment of Fett to be 

composed of 3 provincial companies called the Buffs, 1,000 men and officers. 

Appointed by Hon. Wm . Bull, Lieut. Gov . of Province of S. C. Commission from 

his Honor the Lt. Govr. to Thomas Savage to be a Lieut. in Company in the 

said Regiment supra dated the 20th September 1760. 

"Major Thomas Savage of Boston & His Descendants" by Lawrence Park, Press of 

David Clapp & Son, 1914 (Boston). 

Thomas Savage: b. Bermuda 9/18/1738. Came early in life to Charleston 

where brother John had already settled . Became merchant and prominent , 

citizen. In · 1767 one of Commissioners of S. C. and Member of Charleston 

Company of Light Infantry. Delegate in 1775 to Colonial Congress at Chas. 

Active in Revolution & carried by British to St. Augustine and kept there on 

parol e for nearly a year. Later allowed to join his family i n Phila. After 

British evacuation, they returned to Chas. Fortune impaired but wife 1 s inheri-

tance helped pay off debts. Married April 21, 1767, Mary Elliott Butler at 

Savannah, Ga . , daughter of Wi ll iam & Elizabeth Butler of Savannah, called 

richest heiress in South Carolina. D. Charleston 5/ 29/ 1786. Buried i n St. 

Michael's Cemetery. 

Benjamin Savage b. 6 July 1722. 

A merchant of Chas . , in partnership with his brother John. A Loyalist 

who went to Engl and during Rev. Son of Thomas Savage of .. !bston & Elizabeth 

Fowle of Boston. 

Jeremiah, brother of above Thomas. b. 4/25/1734. M. Sarah El l iott of 

Chas. Living in Chas in 1780. Was an addresser of Sir Henry Clinton 1 and was 

banished and his est at es confiscated . Probably went to England. 

Thomas Savage (son of Bermuda Thomas) b. Chas. 8/ 23/ 1776. Lived in Ga. 

Died 10/10/ 1812 . 



RECORD OF OWNERSHIP OF THE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

From the WILL of Thomas Ell iott made Feb. 11 , 1731; Codicil June 9, 1731; 

Recorded January, 1732. 

Thomas Elliott l~ft to hi s daughter Beuler, the house and lot in 

Charlestown shown on the Grand Model of the Town as 1ot #61, in which Capt. 

John Hext now lives. 

Beuler Elliott was born in 1719, the 9th child of Thomas Elliott, Senior, 

and his second wife Hepzibah. She was married on January 12, 1733 to Thomas 

Rose ... see St. Philips registry ..... They had two daughters. 
r • •• 

Thomas Rose was born about 1710 ... . . the Roses were people of some 

property and were granted 1 ots on Church Street opposite from 59 Church 

Street as shown on the Grand Mode l. From the Records of the office of Mesne 
·---..... 

Conveyence, Book V, page 255 it is shown that on April 3, 1741, Thomas Rose "..._.; 

and wife Beuler Elliott Rose (devisee of Thomas Elliott, Sr.} sold the lot 

and house on New Church Street, known on Grand Model as 1 ot #61 ... 50 feet 

south on Church Street. 232 fe et East and West. On the North by the Baptist 

Church. Southerly on the moite or other half of said lot .. (Thomas Elliott. of 

Berkley County.) Sold to Benjamin Savage. 



------· 

RECORD OF OWNERSHIP OF THE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

FROM THE RECORDS OF THE OFFICE OF MESNE CONVEYENCE . • . •• 

Book V Page 284 .•.. . 

In 1741 William Elliott and wife Frances, to Benjamin Savage, merchant 

of Charlestown in the Province of Carolina •... a parcel of lot #61 of Grant 

Model ..•. North and South 25 feet. North on other part of lot #61 belonging 

to Benjamin Savage. Bounded on the South by property of one Judith Miller. 

Bounded on the West by lot of Issac Cail l aibeuf. This was to have an annual 

payment on the property of 10 sh i 11 i ngs and l peppercorn. This property of 

Benjamin 'savag·e was willed to his brother Jeremiah Savage and his heirs in 

1750. Jeremiah _failing of heirs to his brother Thomas Savage and his heirs. 

Benjamin and Jeremiah Savage both died in the same year, 1750, and the 

pro·perty passed to Thomas Savage. Thomas and his descendents take the 

property and sell it thru the MASTER in EQUITY in 1836 ••... See Book M, page 

380 in Records of Office of MESNE CONVEYENCE. . .. . The Commissioner in Equity 

conveyed to the Baptist Church of Charleston on March 16, 1836, the 

property ..•.. 76 feet, 6 inches on Church Street. 232 feet deep. North 

bounded by the Baptist Burial ground. South the property bounded by lands of 

A. P. Trouche. West on property of Miss Ward and partly on 1 ands of Miss 

Toussiger. 

From the Records of the Office of MESNE CONVEY ENCE . . • Vo l . Z, 11-page 57 

• .•.. also see page 138. 

The Baptist Church sold the property to Jonathan Lucas on Mch. 25, 

1847 ... The property bounded by Church Street. South by property of A. P. 

Trouche. North by the Baptist burial ground .. . .. This deed was conveyed by 

Ker Boyce, President of the Congregation. 

In the Record of Deeds for the year 1849, page 31 • .• .• also page 205 ..••• 

Jonathan Lucas so 1 d the property on Church Street to W. S. Dewar on 



Record of the Ownership of t~e House at 59 Church Street 
Record of Sale of Property to Baptist Church in 1836 
Page 2 

February 14, 1849 .. .• • 

On page 204 of the same volume is recorded the transfer of property on 

February 14, 1849 to James L. Sours by Jonathan Lucas ... Also see page 211 of 

the same vo 1 ume. This must have been the date at which the property was 

divided into two 1 ots as the property at 57 Church Street is now the 

property of W. Dewar Gordon who is now (1947) 80 years old . and who told me 

he had been born in the present house. (No. 57 Church was purchased in 1954 

by Juliette W·. Staats , .from W. Dewar Gordon, the house demolished and the 

property restored t o #59 being made into a garden.) 



RECORD OF THE OWNERSHIP OF THE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

It i s assumed that the present house at 59 Church Street was bui 1 t by 

Thomas and Beuler Elliott Rose. They were people of the most cultivated back-

grounds and came from great wealth ..... There are buildings shown on a map of 

the town made in 1739 for Thomas C. Pinckney but these do not seem to be of 

sufficient si ze on the map to seal e for the present house . . •.. however a 

house of the description of the present one is spoken of and is shown on the 

pl at of the town as being one of the surviving buildings after the fire of 

1740 .. .. '.the architectural and structural detail s would seem to place this 

house as having been bui lt under the ownership of the Roses between 1735 and 

1740 ..... NB ..... the map dated 1739 was some time in the process of making 

and is considered that a new house could have been bui lt at 59 Church Street 

while the ~ap was in process of being made and printed .. ... 

In 1976 the house and property at 57-59 Church Street (Thomas Rose House) 

was l isted on the National Register of Historic Pl aces by the U. S. Department 

of the Interior. 



RECORD OF OWNERSHIP OF TEE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

FROM THE RECORDS OF THE OFFICE OF MESNE CONVEYENCE ••• • 
I 

Book V, page 284 ••• • 
' 

In 1741 William Elliott and wife Frances, to Benjamin Savage, 

merchant of Charlestown in the Province of Carolina •••• 

a parcel of Lot #61 of Grand Model •••• 

North and South 25 feet 

West and East 232 feet 

North on other part of lot #61 belonging to Benjamin Savage 

Bounded on the South by property ot one Judith Miller 

Bounded on the West by lot of Issac Caillaibeuf 

This was to have an annual payment on the prqperty of 10 shillings 

and 1 peppercorn. 

This property of Benjamin Savage was willed to his brother 

Jeremiah Savage and his heirs in 1750. . J~remiah failing of heirs 

to his brother ·Thomas Savage and his heirs. 

Benjamin and Jeremiah Savage both died in the same year, 1750 

and the property passed to Thomas Savage. 

Thomas and his desdendents take the property and sell it thru the 

MASTER IN EQ.UITY in 1836 ••• • 

See Book M, page ~80 1n Records ·of Office of MESNE CONVEYENCE •••• , . . 

the Commissioner in .Equity conveyed to . the Baptls.t Church of 

Charleston on March 16, 1836, the property •• •• 

76 feet, 6 inches on Church Street 

232 feet deep 

( North bounded by the Baptist Burial ground 

L 
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RECORD OF OWNERSHIP OF THE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

From the WILL of Thomas Elliott made Feb. 11, 17~1 

Codicil June 9 1 1731 

Recorded January, 1732 

Thomas Elliott left to his daughter Beuler, the house and lot in 

Charlestown shown on the Grand Model of the Town as lot #61, in 

which Capt. John Hext now lives. 

Beuler Elliott was born in 1719, the 9th child of Thomas Elliott, 

senior,,&.;nd ~is second wife Hepzibah. 

She was married on January 12, 1735 to Thomas Rose •••• see St. Philips 

registry •••• 

They had two daughters. 

Thomas Rose was bo·rn ·about 1710 •••• the Roses were people of some 

property and were _granted lots on Church Street opposite from 

59 Church Street as shown on the Grand Model. 

From the Records of the office of~Jlesne Conveyence, Book V, page 255 

it is shown that on April 3, 1741, Thomas Rose and wife Beuler· Elliott 

Rose (devisee of Thomas Elliott, sr.) sold the lot and house on New 

Church Street, known on Grand Model as lot #61 •••• 

50 feet south on Church St. 

232 feet East a.mi West 

On the North by the Baptist Church 

Southerly on the moite or other half of said lot •• {Thomas Elliott of 

Berkley County.) 

Sold to Benjamin Savage. 
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RECORD OF THE OWNERSHIP OF TBE HOUSE AT 59 CHURCH STREET 

Continued •••• record of sale of property to Baptist Church in 1836 

South the property bounded by lands of A. P. Trouche 

West on property of Miss Ward and partly on lands of Miss Toussiger. 

From the Records of the Office of Mesne Conveyance •••• 

Vol. z~ 11-page 57 •••• also see page 1~8 

the Baptist Church sold the property to Jonathan Lucas on Mch.25, 1847 •• 

The property bound~d by Church Street 

South by property of A. P. Trouche 

North by the Bap.tist burial ground •••• 

This deed was conveyed by Ker Boyce, President of the Congregation. 

In the Record of deeds for the year 1849 

page. 31 •••• alao page 205 •••• 

Jonathan Lucas sold the property on Church Street to W. s. Dewar on 

February 14, 1849 •••• 

·On page 204 of the same volume is recorded the transfer of property 

on February 14, 1849 to James L. Bours by Jonathan Lucas •••• 

Also see page 211 of the same volume. 

This must have been the date at which the property was divided into 

two lots as the property at 57 Church Street is now the property of 

w. Dewar Gordon who is now (1947) 80 years old and who told me he 

bad been born in the present house. 

(No. 57 Church Street was purchased in 1954 by Juliette w. Staats 

from w. Dewar Gordon, the house demolished and the property 

restored to No. 59, being made into a garden. ) 

/ 



% 

0 

% 

w 
w 

Theme (3): Development of the English Colonies, 1700-1775 

Fo"" 10-300 
(July 1969) 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM 

(Type all entries - complete a pplicable sections) 
::· 

COMM~N~ 

"""hefrhomas)Rose House 
ANO/O R HISTORIC : 

CITY OR T O WN: 

S T A 1 E 

CATEGORY 
(Check On e) 

[J District :f] Bui ld ing 
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0 Ob ject 
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Public Acquisition: 
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O Being Considered 

Pf'! IO:SEN T USE (Check O ne- or Mor" a s Approprl11te) 
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0 Educational 

0 Enterta inment 

,;{~ :OWNER OF PROP.ERTY 
O WNER'S N"ME: 

CIT Y OR T O WN : 

0 Governme nt 

0 Indus trial 

D Milrlory 

0 MuHum 

0 Pork 

IXJ Prh•ale Residence 

0 Rel igious 

0 Sc ie ntific 

STA T E: 

South Carolina 
COUN T Y ' 

Charleston 
FOR NPS USE ONLY 

STATUS 

Occupied 

0 Unoccupied 

0 Preservation wori. 

in progress 

0 Transportation 

0 Other (Specl fr) 

ACC ESSIBLE 
TO THE PUBLIC 

Yu: 
Ill R .. tricred 

1 Unrestri cted 

No 

0 Comments 
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Re ister of Mesne Conve ance 
STREET ANO NUMBER : 

Charleston Count Courthouse 
C ITY O R TOWN: ST"TE C O D E 

Charleston South carol ina 

TI T l..E OF SU R VEY : 

This i s Charleston: an Architectural Surve of a Uni t. ue American Cit 
OA"!"E OF SU RVE Y : 1944 Q Fed•rc:il D State 0 County 
O EF051TORY FOR SUR V EY RE C ORDS: 
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CONDITION 
IX) Exce !lent 

K:J Altered 

0 Good 0 Fair 

(Check One) 

0 Unaltered 

(Check .One) 

0 Deterjgrated 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL. (It known) PHYSICAL. .0.PPEARANCE 

0 Ruins 0 UnexpoHd 

(Chock One) 

n Moved hLJ Original Site 

Square, two-and-a-half -story brick house with stucco-covered walls, 
hipped roof with dormers. Five bays wide, four bays deep. Corners marked 
by large quoins; first floor windows have exterior paneled shutters; 
second-story shutters arc louvered. Large two-story porch added about 
1830 along south side; fanlighted street-entrance door flanked by engaged 
half-round Tuscan·columns and topped by triangular pediment. Present main 
entrance, also dating from about 1830, is in second bay of south side. 
Original (1735-~0) entrance was in center of five-bay-wide east (street) 
facade. In second story above entranceway was second center door and 
small iron balcony. In 1828-30 these features were elimiru:1ted from 
street facade and entrance shifted to south side, opening into recep· 
tion hall. 

Typical Charleston "double house" plan: i .n original entrance plan, 
center street door opened into reception hall that occupies three bays of 
front. To right of former center entrance is smaller front office two 
bays wide. In west wall of reception hall, opposite former entrance, 
door opens into hall extending through house to rear door. To left of hall 
is dining room and to right a small lateral stair hall and room now used as 
kitchen. First floor plan is repeated on second floor except that large 
drawing room occupies entire five-bay width of front. Originally one of 
two bedrooms in rear portion, room in northwest corner of house was sub­
divided in 1929 to make extra room. Third floor has three bedrooms and 
storage room. 

First floor reception room and dining room, and second floor drawing 
room are paneled in cyprus from ceiling to floor. Original mantel in 
reception room; arched cupboard to right of fireplace. 18th century 
mantels in dining room and second floor southwest bedroom were taken from 
old Charleston houses and installed in 1929. Fireplace wall of southwest 
bedroom has original paneling. Adam style mantel in second floor draw­
ing room is c. 1800 replacement; fireplace flanked by pair of unsymmetri­
cally-placed arched doors. Stairway, lighted by large window in north 
wall )is finished with light panels and molding, carved black walnut balus­
ters and rail. 

Historical architect Albert Simons, FAIA, restored and modernized the 
residence in 1929. Bath and kitchen added, missing mantels replaced, 
one bedroom subdivided; original detached kitchen connected to main house • 
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tosophy 

Science 

Sculpturo 
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Tran• portation 

0 20th Century 
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D Other (Specify) 

~7~oAlthough it has been considerably altered since its erection in 17 
~ the Thomas Rose House is one of Charleston's best specimens of 
colonial architecture. It is a two-and-a-half-story Georgian brick 
townhouse which retains most of its fine origina~early-Georgian paneling., 

The house was considered as a National Historic Landmark and is in 
excellent condition. Used as a residences it is open to special tours 
10-15 days a year . 
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Stoney, Samuel G., This is Charleston; a Survey of the Architectural 
Heritage of a Unique American City. Charleston, 1944. 

LATITUOE ANO LONGITUDE COORDINATES 

OEl"INING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 

LA Tl TUOE ANO LONGI TUOE COOROllllll. TES 
0 OEl'"INING Tl"E CENTER PO INT 01" A PROPERTY 

1~~~-..~~~~~~~~~--.~----~~~~-1Rr--~-~~~~o_F~L_E_s_s~T_H_•~N~T_F_.N~•-C_R_E_s~~-~~~--+ 
CORNER LATI TUDE LONGITUOE LA TITUDE LONGITUDE 

Degre•• Minutes Seconcls Degrees Minui.s Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Minutes Seconds 
NW 0 0 32 ° 46 '23.06. 79 0 55 . 45.58 
NE 0 0 

SE 0 0 

q 0 

STATE: C ODE COUNTY CO D E 

STATE: CODE COUNT Y : CODE 

STATE : CODE COUNTY : COOE 
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Mrs. James \J. l"ant, Historic Resources Divisj-"o-=-n'-------~----------1 
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x 11.188 
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As the designated State I~iaison Officer for the Na­

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 

89-665). 1 hereby nominate this property for inclutiion 

in the National Rellister and cerlify that it has been 

evaluated accord.in& to the criteria <ind procedures set 

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 

Title Director, S.C. Dept, of Archive 
and History 

Date August 29, 1970 
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